
    Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center 
10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA  95827-3007 

(916) 228-3070 – Fax (916) 228-3079 
A   G   E   N   D   A 

9:00 a.m. 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF SRPSCC 
Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Headquarters 

10545 Armstrong Ave – Rooms #384 & 385 
Mather, CA  95655-4102 

Call to Order Chairperson 

Roll Call Member Agencies Secretary 

Pledge of Allegiance 

AGENDA UPDATE: An opportunity for Board members to remove agenda items that are
not ready for presentation and/or action at the present Board meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  An opportunity for members of the public to address the Governing
Board on items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Duration of comment is limited to three minutes. 

CONSENT AGENDA: Matters of routine approval including, but not limited to, Board meeting synopsis, payroll reports,
referral of issues to committee, other consent matters. Consent Agenda is acted upon as one unit unless a Board member 
requests separate discussion and/or action. 

1. Board Meeting Synopsis (December 9, 2015) Page 
2. Special Board Workshop (January 15, 2016) Page 
3. Budget to Actual (November) Page 
4. Revenues (November) Page 
5. Overtime Report (November) Page 
6. Budget to Actual (December) Page 
7. Revenues (December) Page 
8. Overtime Report (December) Page 

 PROPOSED ACTION: Motion to Approve Consent Agenda 

PRESENTATION: 

1. Longevity Recognition:

Roman Kukharets – 4 years – January 9, 2016 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

1. Finance Committee (December 8, 2015) Page 
2. Personnel Committee*

ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Old Business:  Items from previous Board Meeting(s) that have not been resolved and require attention. 

4-11 
12-14 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

21-22 

4-11 
12-14 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

21-22 

1



None 

b. New Business:

1. Resolution #5-16, Approve Cell Tower Memorandum of
Understanding With Sacramento-Valley Limited Partnership
(d/b/a Verizon Wireless) Page 

2. Resolution #1-16, Approve Request by City of Isleton to Become
A Contracting Agency
a. Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Enter into Agreement
b. Services Agreement Between Center and City of

Isleton Page 
3. Resolution #2-16, Approve Request by River Delta Fire District

to Become a Contracting Agency
a. Resolution Authorizing Fire Chief to Enter into Agreement
b. Services Agreement Between Center and River Delta

Fire District Page 
4. Resolution #3-16, Sponsor the Department of Veterans Affairs

Medical Center as a Secondary Participant on the SRRCS Page 
5. Resolution #4-16, Adopt Fictitious Name of “The Sacramento

Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center (“SRFECC”) and
Reaffirm The Center’s Current Logo Page 

6. Review/Approval of Customer Service Survey

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL PLACEMENT ON FUTURE AGENDA: 

PRESENTATION/INFORMATION: 

1. Communications Center Statistics (November and December) Page 

CENTER REPORTS:  Consolidation of Administrative, Operational and Technical Reports. 

1. Chief Executive Director*
2. Administrative Services Manager Page 
3. Communications Manager*

CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. Letter From Melissa Penilla, Clerk of the Board for Metro Fire,
Announcing the Appointment of Communications Division
Manager Scott Andrews as Alternate Representative to
Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center Board Page 

2. Letter From Fire Chief David Roberts, El Dorado Hills
Fire Department, Regarding Potential JPA Membership and
Request for a Feasibility Study Page 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 

COUNSEL’S REPORT: 

 

 

 

23-36 

37-48 

49-60 

61 

62-65 

75-81 

82-83 

84 

85 

Page 66-74

2



ANTICIPATED ACTION ITEMS:  These items require board action at a future meeting. 

CLOSED SESSION:  Included on agenda as needed. 

1. PERSONNEL ISSUES*
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957 
Action/Discussion to Appoint, Employ, Dismiss, Accept the Resignation of or Otherwise Affect the Employment 
Status of a Public Employee 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS*
Negotiators: Teresa Murray, Chief Executive Director

Robert E. Kingsley, Counsel 
Teamsters: Local 856
Teamsters: Local 150
Unrepresented Employees: All
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6 
Closed session with the Center’s designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits
of its represented and unrepresented employees, and for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily provided scope of 
representation. 

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation*
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(b) 
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss significant exposure to litigation. 
(Four (4) potential cases 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The next Regular Board Meeting is February 23, 2016. 

Location: Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 10545 Armstrong Ave, Mather, CA  
95655-4102; Board Chambers – Rooms 384-385 

Time:  9:00 a.m. 
Distribution:  Board Members, Alternates and Chiefs 
Posted at:  Administration Office 

DISABILITY INFORMATION: 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Chief Executive’s Office at (916) 228-3070.  Notification at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting will enable the Center to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 

POSTING: 

This is to certify that on January 21, 2016, I posted a copy of the agenda: 
-At 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827 
-on the Center’s website which is: www.srfecc.ca.gov 
-10545 Armstrong Ave, Mather, CA 95655-4102 

This is to certify that I posted a copy of the agenda at 10230 Systems Parkway on January 21, 2016. 

3



SPECIAL SRPSCC GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 
December 9, 2015 

 
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS   
 Chief Ron Phillips    City of Folsom Fire Department   
 Chief Walt White    City of Sacramento Fire Department 
 Deputy Chief Chris Holbrook   Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District  
 Chief Hansen    Cosumnes Community Services District 
  
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT   
 
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT 
 Teresa Murray    Chief Executive Director 
 Joyce Starosciak    Administrative Services Manager 
 Kylee Soares    Acting Communications Manager 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 Bob Kingsley    General Counsel, SRPSCC 
 Chief Mark Wells    Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
 Deputy Chief Lloyd Ogan   City of Sacramento Fire Department 
 Janice Parker    Administrative Analyst, SRPSCC 
 Wendy Crosthwaite   Executive Assistant, SRPSCC 
 Joe Thuesen    Administrative Supervisor, SRPSCC 
 Mike Grace     Training Supervisor SRPSCC 
 Sara Roush    Office Assistant, SRPSCC 
 Tara Poirier    Dispatch Supervisor, SRPSCC 
 Jill Short     Local 852 Representative 
 John Herrera    GIS Coordinator, SRPSCC 
 Matt Wooden    GIS Coordinator, SRPSCC 
 Brad Dorcett    CAD Technician, SRPSCC 
 Jamie Brown    Call Taker, SRPSCC 
 Laura Macias    Call Taker, SRPSCC 
 Elizabeth Strong    Dispatcher, SRPSCC 
 Iris Gulzow    Office Technician, SRPSCC 
 Whitney Walker    Dispatcher, SRPSCC 
  

1. The meeting was called to order and roll call was taken at 9:03 a.m.   
 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

3. There were no agenda updates. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

  None 
 

5.   CONSENT AGENDA 
  

A motion was made by Chief Phillips and seconded by Chief Hansen to approve the consent 
agenda and Board Meeting minutes, November 6, 2015. 

 
AYES: Folsom, City of Sacramento, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community 

Services District, 
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 

                                                      4



Motion carried. 

6. PRESENTATION:

1. Presentation of FY 2015/2016 Budget – Sara Roush

A bound copy of the FY 2015/2016 Budget was disseminated to the Board for their review.
Ms. Roush said the budget is more than simply a financial document, it is a reflection of the
ever-changing story and evolution of SRFECC for FY 2015/2016 and into the future. Ms.
Roush encouraged the members of the Board to provide input as we build our budget for
FY 2016/2017.

2. Longevity Recognition:

a. Laura Macias – 12 years – December 1, 2015
b. Kylee Soares – 19 years – December 2, 2015
c. Elizabeth Strong – 11 years – December 6, 2015
d. Iris Gulzow – 23 years – December 7, 2015
e. Brad Dorsett – 3 years – December 28, 2015

Acting Communications Manager Kylee Soares congratulated Laura Macias on her 12 
years of service to SRFECC and shared her impressive service performance statistics with 
the Board, including 79 life saves. 

Elizabeth Strong has been with SRFECC for 11 years and in addition to being a dispatcher 
with 26 life saves, has been a member of the EMD-Q team, has been a trainer and has 
contributed significantly to the success of our annual OPST banquets. 

Wendy Crosthwaite presented Iris Gulzow with her certificate for 23 years of service to 
SRFECC.  Iris brings to her position a wealth-spring of knowledge about the history of our 
organization and its personnel.  Her presence is greatly appreciated. 

Administrative Services Manager, Joyce Starosciak, congratulated Brad Dorsett on his 
three year anniversary with the Center. He has advanced from Help Desk Technician to 
CAD Technician in his short tenure with us. He maintains a very high level of customer 
service and received the IT Technician of the Year award from NAPCO.  He has closed 
3677 Help Desk tickets. 

Chief Executive Director Teresa Murray expressed her appreciation for the 19 years of 
service Supervisor Kylee Soares has given to SRFECC.  Currently, Ms. Soares is serving 
as Acting Communications Manager in Ms. Luis’ absence. Supervisor Soares has an 
outstanding customer service record and has 18 life saves in her dispatch career.   

3. Presentation to Supervisor Tara Poirier

Dispatcher Jill Short made a brief presentation to Tara Poirier and thanked her for her
service to Local 856 as one of our union representatives.

4. Presentation to Deputy Lloyd Ogan

Chief Executive Director Murray presented the “Strength of Character” award to Deputy
Lloyd Ogan for all his support for SRFECC.

Chief White congratulated and expressed his admiration to Deputy Chief Ogan for his
loyalty as well as the many contributions he has made to Sacramento City Fire.

                                                      5



 
 Chief Hansen acknowledged all the personnel who were celebrating anniversaries this 

month.  She also wished Deputy Chief Ogan best wishes on his retirement and said he will 
be missed. 

 
 Chief Phillips echoed Chief Hansen’s sentiments and congratulated Deputy Chief Ogan on 

his retirement. 
 
 Deputy Chief Holbrook expressed his appreciation for all of the Center employees 

celebrating anniversaries.  He went on to praise Deputy Chief Ogan on his willingness to 
assist his “fire” associates whenever they made of request of him. 

 
 7. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
  A. Finance Committee 
 
   The Finance Committee met on November 10, 2015, and the minutes from that meeting 

were contained in the Board packet.  
 
   The Committee discussed the financing of the new CAD system and the implementation of 

Pulse Point. 
   
   The revised minutes from the September 8, 2015, Finance Committee meeting were 

reviewed and the Committee recommended the acceptance by the full Board of this 
revised version. 

 
   A motion was made by Chief White and seconded by Chief Phillips to accept the revised 

September 8, 2015, Finance Committee minutes. 
 

AYES: Folsom, City of Sacramento, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community 
Services District, 

NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN: 
 

Motion carried. 
 
  B. Personnel Committee 
 
   The Personnel Committee met on November 10, 2015. Minutes from that meeting were 

contained in the Board packet. 
 
 8. ACTION ITEMS: 
 
  a. Old Business:  Items from previous Board Meeting(s) that have not been resolved and require attention. 
  

   None 
 

b. New Business: 
 

1. Resolution #14-15, Payment of Funds for the New CAD System  
(amended version) 

 
The Board had requested a resolution addressing CAD invoice payments based on 
successful completion of milestones (deliverables) as outlined in the contract with New 
World Systems. Per this amended version, Chief Executive Director Murray will meet 

                                                      6



with the Finance Committee and present CAD invoices for Committee review prior to 
issuing payment(s).  

A motion was made by Chief Hansen and seconded by Chief White to adopt 
Resolution #14-15, Payment of Funds for the New CAD System. 

AYES: Folsom, City of Sacramento, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community 
Services District, 

NOES: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

Motion carried. 

2. Resolution #15-15, Fixing the Employer’s Contribution Under the Public Employees’
Medical and Hospital Care Act.

Resolution #15-15 was tabled until the January 26, 2016, Board Meeting.

3. Election of Board Officers

Chief White nominated Chief Phillips for Board Chairperson, it was seconded by Chief
Hansen.

AYES: Folsom, City of Sacramento, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community 
Services District, 

NOES: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

Motion carried. 

Chief White nominated Chief Hansen for Board Vice Chairperson, it was seconded by 
Chief Phillips. 

AYES: Folsom, City of Sacramento, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community 
Services District, 

NOES: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

Motion carried. 

4. Appointment of Personnel Committee Members

The Personnel Committee will include Chief Hansen and Deputy Chief Costamagna.

5. Appointment of Finance Committee Members

The Finance Committee will include Chief Phillips and Deputy Chief Bridge.

6. Approval of City of Isleton as Contract Agency

This item will be tabled until the January 26, 2016, Board Meeting.

7. Approval of River Delta Fire Protection District as Contract Agency

7



 
 This item will be tabled until the January 26, 2016, Board Meeting. 
 
8. Discussion/Direction – Equipment Installation for River Delta/Isleton 
 
 Delta Wireless had provided a bid addressing the installation costs of equipment to 

facilitate our acquiring dispatch responsibility for River Delta/Isleton. A portion of the 
cost will be absorbed by the County of Sacramento and the remainder split among the 
member agencies. Chief Executive Director Murray asked the Board for approval to 
move forward with the installation. 

 
 The Board unanimously approved her request.  
 
9. Discussion/Direction for Re-Branding SRPSCC Based on the Third Amended JPA 

Agreement and Name Change 
 
 Chief Executive Director Murray said that our organization has done a phenomenal job 

of branding and marketing SRFECC.  Ms. Murray would like to retain the name, while 
maintaining some language in the charter to allow for the exploration of adding non-fire 
agencies to our JPA. 

 
 Chief White supported retaining the SRFECC name, but had some concerns about the 

documents that contain the new name, particularly the Third Amended JPA 
Agreement. 

 
 Chief Hansen said the JPA Agreement will be discussed at the upcoming Board 

Workshop in January. At that time a modification in the language will be addressed. 
   
 Chief Phillips agreed with Chief Hansen. 
 
 The customer service survey draft will be presented at the January 26, 2016, Board 

Meeting. 
 

 9. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL PLACEMENT ON FUTURE AGENDA: 
   

Below is a list of items suggested by the Board for potential placement on a future agenda that 
have not yet been addressed. 

 
   1. Creation of a customer satisfaction survey incorporating a statistically viable sampling 

– A draft will be presented at the January 26, 20106, Board Meeting. 
 
 10. PRESENTATION/INFORMATION: 
 
 11. CENTER REPORTS 
 
  A. Chief Executive Director Report  
   
  1. Chief Executive Director Murray said during the month of November dispatchers 

answered all emergency calls within 15 seconds 97.24% of the time and within 40 
seconds 99.75% of the time, which exceeds NFP standards. 

 
  2.  We are moving forward with the assumption of dispatching responsibility for River 

Delta/Isleton.  Twitchell Island equipment is expected to be installed in January, 2016, 
according to SRRCS.  Testing should be concluded by the end of January. 

 

                                                      8



  3. Although recently retired, Matt Shank has returned as a volunteer and is working on 
EMS projects with Joe Thuesen and providing support at the Conference and Training 
Center as needed. 

 
  4. The media rollout for Pulse Point is scheduled for December 14th at Cesar Chavez 

Park.  A soft launch occurred yesterday, and so far it is going well.  Three of the four 
agencies are providing feedback via our Help Desk. The fourth agency has chosen to 
monitor their own feedback.  An FAQ sheet will be created based on this feedback. 

 
   Field work was conducted by our IT team to validate AED locations throughout the 

districts in preparation of the Pulse Point implementation. 
 
  5. The New World CAD kickoff has been tentatively scheduled for January 12, 2016.  We 

will finalize the CAD Build team list. Monthly updates will be received from the Build 
Team. 

  
   Chief Executive Director Murray said New World Systems has been purchased by 

Tyler Technologies and she looks forward to maintaining the same mutually beneficial 
relationship she had with New World prior to their sale. 

 
   In preparation for this CAD build Brad Dorsett has been leading a CAD “clean up” 

team. 
 
 B. Administrative Services Manager Report  
 

1. The Pulse Point implementation has gone well. 
 
2. Cierra Lewandowski and Cindy Chao are in Kronos Work Force Ready timesheet 

training in preparation for the implementation of our automated timesheet system. 
 
3. A Comcast outage occurred over the past weekend.  John Herrera and Shane 

Steckelberg responded to the Center to move everyone to the redundant AT&T lines 
and continue uninterrupted “business as usual” throughout the entire outage. 

 
C. Interim Communications Manager Report – Kylee Soares 

 
  1. We had a retirement party for Matt Shank on November 6th and he has subsequently 

returned as a volunteer.  
 
  2. In early November, Supervisor Moody conducted ROSS/Region IV training and 

Matthew Wooden conducted pictometry training sessions at the Conference and 
Training Center. 

 
  3. We held a graduation ceremony for our four dispatch recruits as well as a promotional 

ceremony for our most recent dispatch supervisor, Tara Poirier, on November 6th. 
 
  4. We had two radio incidents where SRRCS put our radio system into site trunking and 

both incidents went very well.  
 
  5. December 2nd & 3rd the Center assumed operational duties for Region IV. This “drill” 

was conducted to provide “hands-on” training for our staff and seamless transition for 
any future incidents.  We will do this transfer again in February and April. 

 
  6. Comm Van 5264 was on location for the California International Marathon this past 

Sunday. 
 

                                                      9



7. The dispatch shift bid has been completed and vacation bids should be completed
today.

8. Since our last Board Meeting dispatch staff has handled: 33 structure fires, nine
commercial fires, four fire fatalities, eight level II hazmats, two second alarms, 3 MCI’s,
a house struck by lightening and formal tornado warnings.

9. On November 13th, Chief Executive Director offered Supervisors Soares and Thuesen
the opportunity to assume the role of Interim Communications Manager, and
Supervisor Soares expressed her appreciation to the Board and CED Murray.

12. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Letter from Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Appointing Assistant Chief Eric
Bridge as the Alternate Representative to the SRPSCC Governing Board

This correspondence was acknowledged out of order – at the beginning of the meeting.

13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

Chief Executive Director Murray acknowledged that this was Deputy Chief Holbrook’s last
SRFECC Board Meeting as the Metro representative. She thanked him for his participation on
the Board and his kindness and support of the Comm Center.

Chief White congratulated Deputy Chief Holbrook on a “job well done”.

Chief Hansen wished everyone safe and happy holidays.  She also expressed her
appreciation to Deputy Chief Holbrook for serving on the JPA Board.

Chief Phillips wished everyone happy holidays and also thanked Deputy Chief Holbrook for
everything.

Chief Holbrook said he was proud of the positive changes that have occurred at the Center
and thanked everyone for having had the opportunity to serve with them on the Board.

14. COUNSEL REPORT

None

15. ANTICIPATED ACTION ITEMS

16. CLOSED SESSION

1. PERSONNEL ISSUES*
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957
Action/Discussion to Appoint, employ, dismiss, Accept the Resignation of or Otherwise Affect the Employment
Status of a Public Employee

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Existing Litigation*
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss the following case

California Fire Chiefs Association, Inc. v. Howard Backer, et al.
Case No. CV-02351-TLN-AC

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation*
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(b)
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss significant exposure to litigation
Six (6) cases

10



  
Closed session was convened at 10:03 a.m.   
 

Open session was reconvened at 11:47 a.m.  The Board received an update regarding Cal 
Chiefs’ litigation; no action was taken. 
 
The Board received updates regarding personnel issues and anticipated litigation; direction 
was given, no action was taken. 

 
17. The meeting of the Governing Board was adjourned at 11:47 a.m. until the next Meeting of the 

Governing Board scheduled for 9:00 a.m., January 26, 2016, at Metro Board Chambers, 
10545 Armstrong Ave – Rooms #384-385, Mather, CA 95655-4102.        

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
 Janice Parker 
 Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________  
Chris Holbrook, Chairperson    Ron Phillips, Vice Chairperson  

                                                      11



SPECIAL WORKSHOP: 3rd Amended JPA Agreement 
April 14, 2015 

 
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS   
 Chief Ron Phillips    City of Folsom Fire Department  
 Chief Tracey Hansen   Cosumnes Community Services District 
 Chief  White    City of Sacramento Fire Department 
 Deputy Chief Eric Bridge    acramento Metropolitan Fire District 
  
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
 
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT 
 Teresa Murray    Chief Executive Director 
 Linda Luis     Communications Manager 
 Joyce Starosciak    Administrative Services Manager  
  
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 Bob Kingsley    General Counsel, SRFECC 
 Chad Wilson    Division Chief, City of Folsom Fire Department 
 Janice Parker Administrative Analyst, SRFECC 
 Wendy Crosthwaite Executive Assistant, SRFECC 
 Joe Thuesen    Administrative Supervisor, SRFECC 
 Kylee Soares    Operations Supervisor, SRFECC 
  
    

1. The meeting was called to order and roll call was taken at 1:04  p.m.   
 

2. Chief White lead the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. Letter From City of Folsom, City Manager, Evert Palmer, Appointing Division Chief Chad 
Wilson as Alternate Board Representative to the JPA Board. 
 
Correspondence had been moved out of order on the agenda to officially acknowledge 
Division Chief Chad Wilson as alternate Board representative for City of Folsom Fire 
Department.   
 
A copy of the letter had been included in the Board packet. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None  

 
5. PRESENTATION INFORMATION: 

 
A. Joint Powers Authority Agreement and the Authority Granted to Board Representatives 

and Alternates by the Agreement 
 

Counsel disseminated a handout highlighting the evolution of the JPA .  The Joint Powers 
Agreement has been amended three times to incorporate changes in the make- up of our 
member agencies.  When the City of Sacramento joined the JPA the voting structure was 
changed from one–agency, one-vote, to weighted voting based on call volume. 

 
 A complete history of the JPA has been compiled and is available for review. 
 

Much of the JPA agreement has remained unchanged since 1978, with the notable 
exception of the weighted voting.  Counsel noted that either primary or alternate Board 

                                                      12



representative has the power to cast a vote on behalf of their agency. The representative 
and alternate are selected by their own Boards for participation on the JPA Board. 

 
JPA’s have the power to exercise any power that is common to all members. There is no 
legal requirement to coordinate with members’ Boards to take action on behalf of the JPA.  
According to the approved JPA agreement each Board member has been awarded the 
authority to vote on JPA issues without seeking permission of their Boards.    
 
Chief Hansen suggested creating and adopting a Board policy establishing the 
qualifications for a Board representative or alternate appointee. 

 
In order to convene a meeting, 2/3 of the Board, based on weighted voting, must be 
present to have a quorum.  Action occurs when 2/3 of the Board votes to approve an item. 
Chief Hansen reminded the members that the make-up of the Board has changed and the 
weighted vote does at times provide a challenge when attempting to move Board business 
forward. 

 
If a quorum is not present, the members may adjourn the gathering and set a meeting for a 
specific day and time without having to repost the agenda.  A Special Board Meeting is a 
meeting outside of our established Board Meeting schedule and notice requirement is only 
24 hours rather than the standard 72 hour posting requirement.  Remote participation is 
possible as long as there is public access at the remote location and the agenda has been 
posted.  

 
If both the elected Chair and Vice-Chair are not in attendance, the first order of business of 
the meeting would be to appoint a Chair for the duration of the meeting. 

 
Our 3rd Amended JPA states the debts incurred by the JPA, must be satisfied by the 
agencies according to their pro-rata share even if the member leaves the JPA. 

 
In order for an agency to withdraw from the JPA they must provide notice no later than 
October 1st for withdrawal as of the following June 30th. The agency must either satisfy 
their financial obligations to the JPA or have made contractual arrangements to satisfy 
their financial obligation prior to June 30th – date of withdrawal. 

 
Any excess funds at the close of the fiscal year belong to the Center and no longer belong 
to the contributing agencies. The assigned Board member from each agency has the 
authority to determine what is done with the excess funds of the JPA such as; deposit into 
the CIP or return to agencies. 

 
This 3rd Amended JPA agreement changed the formal name of the JPA to address 
potential additions of agencies outside of fire and medical, but our branding is associated 
with our previous name.  However, in order to facilitate the use of our previous name, 
Counsel will file a DBA with the County, rather than the Secretary of State. 

 
Chief Hansen said this was a very helpful exercise and would like to provide this same 
educational experience for each of our Board’s members so they are clear regarding the 
authority the adoption of this JPA agreement provides. 

 
Chief Executive Director Murray said she anticipates some savings from this fiscal year 
and would like to avoid any delay regarding the disposition of the funds based on an 
individual Board member’s financial decision making limitations. 

 
Chief White and Deputy Chief McLaughlin thanked Mr. Kingsley for conducting this 
workshop. 

 

                                                      13



Chief Phillips asked if Board Policies are consistent with the JPA agreement and Mr. 
Kingsley felt they were. 

6. The meeting of the Governing Board Workshop was adjourned at 2:24 p.m. until the next
Regular Meeting of the Governing Board scheduled for 9:00 a.m., January 26 2016, at Metro
Board Chambers, 10545 Armstrong Ave – Rooms #384-385, Mather, CA 95655-4102.

Respectfully submitted, 

Janice Parker 
Clerk of the Board 

________________________ ______________________________ 
Ron Phillips, Chairperson  Tracey Hansen, Vice Chairperson  

14



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Budget to Actual Report
As of November 30, 2015

Expenses 
FY 15/16
Budget

YTD Expenses 
11/30/15

% of YTD 
Expenses

$ Under / (Over) 
Budget

% Under/
(Over) Budget

Salaries and Benefits 6,441,629            2,533,772            53.80% 3,907,857            61%

Communications Equipment and Services 1,137,777            312,456               6.63% 825,321               73%
Professional Services 420,505               232,824               4.94% 187,681               45%
Facilities and Maintenance 177,305               82,838 1.76% 94,467 53%
Recruitment, Retention and Training 126,263               79,218 1.68% 47,046 37%
Capital Outlay 909,714               1,419,806            30.15% (510,092)              -56% *

Materials and Supplies 91,300 22,062 0.47% 69,238 76%
Computer Services and Equipment 230,200               18,269 0.39% 211,931               92%
Misc. Expenses 20,000 8,039 0.17% 11,961 60%

- 
Total 9,554,693 4,709,285 100% 4,845,409 51%

Days Remaining in Budget Period/Days YTD in Budget Period 58%

Budget to Actual - FY 15/16
As of November 30, 2015

Salaries and Benefits 
74.98% 

Communications 
Equipment  

and Services 
10.66% 

Facilities and 
Maintenance 

4.08% 

Recruitment, 
Retention 

and Training 
2.72% 

Professional 
Services 
4.52% 

Capital Outlay 
0.78% 

Materials 
and Supplies 

0.75% 

Misc. 
Expenses 

0.14% 

Budget to Actual - FY 15/16 
As of November 30, 2015 

Other 

Computer 
Services and 
Equipment 

0.56% 

15



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Revenues Report
As of November 30, 2015

FY 15/16 
Preliminary

Budget

Revenue 
Received as of 

11/30/15

Budget Remaining
Member Contribution 8,003,132           4,326,094          
Metro E Reimbursement 10,000                
Reimb. Revene - Backbone 69,600                
Reimb. Revenue - SETNA Training 3,000                  

Other:
Interest Income 6,000                  2,389                  
Board Ups 19,000                9,856                  
CalCard Incentives 2,000                  1,461                  
Notary 100                      10                       
Admin-Fee Backbone 400                      
CTC 10,000                8,828                  
CTC Contracted Training 500                      250                     
Other 1,100                  50                       

Total Other 39,100                22,843                

Total 8,124,832           4,348,937          

*Numbers based on revenues received rather than revenues earned

Revenues - FY 15/16
As of November 30, 2015

Member 
Contribution 

99.84% 
Interest Income 

0.027% 

Board Ups 
0.059% 

CalCard Incentives 
0.034% 

CTC 
0.021% 

CTC Contracted Training 
0.006% 

Other 
0.001% 

FY 15-16 Revenue as of November 30, 2015 

                                                      16



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Overtime Report
As of November 30, 2015

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 13-14 66.5 41 26 41.5 50.25 38 78 78.75 49 92.25 120.25 69.25
FY 14-15 57.5 53.5 73.25 124 126.25 123.75 64 145.5 114.25 96.25 114.75 190
FY 15-16 120.75 509.75 335.08 336.25 106

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 Comparative OT Report  
Admin Staff 

As of November 30, 2015 

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 13-14 155.75 214 112 117.25 113.25 287.5 152.25 187.5 112 60.5 79 110.5
FY 14-15 56.75 169.75 68.75 326.25 243 299.2 83 123.5 130.5 213.25 78.5 231
FY 15-16 238.25 366.5 318.75 241.5 225.76

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 Comparative OT Report  
Communications Staff 

As of November 30, 2015 

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 15-16 62.25 287.25 406 348.5

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 OT Hours resulting from OES Deployment 
As of November 30, 2015 

Please note that OT due to OES deployment is included in Admin and Communications Staff OT numbers 

                                                      17



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Budget to Actual Report
As of December 31, 2015

Expenses 
FY 15/16
Budget

YTD Expenses 
12/31/15

% of YTD 
Expenses

$ Under / (Over) 
Budget

% Under/
(Over) Budget

Salaries and Benefits 6,441,629            2,728,191            53.71% 3,713,438            58% *

Communications Equipment and Services 1,137,777            399,737               7.87% 738,040               65%
Professional Services 420,505               232,564               4.58% 187,941               45%
Facilities and Maintenance 177,305               96,127 1.89% 81,178 46%
Recruitment, Retention and Training 126,263               87,174 1.72% 39,090 31%
Capital Outlay 909,714               1,434,801            28.25% (525,087)              -58% *

Materials and Supplies 91,300 24,307 0.48% 66,993 73%
Computer Services and Equipment 230,200               67,824 1.34% 162,376               71%
Misc. Expenses 20,000 8,926 0.18% 11,074 55%

- 
Total 9,554,693 5,079,651 100% 4,475,042 47%

Days Remaining in Budget Period/Days YTD in Budget Period 50%

Budget to Actual - FY 15/16
As of December 31, 2015

Salaries and Benefits 
74.98% 

Communications 
Equipment  

and Services 
10.66% 

Facilities and 
Maintenance 

4.08% 
Recruitment, 

Retention 
and Training 

2.72% 

Professional 
Services 
4.52% 

Capital Outlay 
0.78% 

Materials 
and Supplies 

0.75% 

Misc. 
Expenses 

0.14% 

Budget to Actual - FY 15/16 
As of December 31, 2015 

Other 
Computer 

Services and 
Equipment 

0.56% 

18



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Revenues Report
As of December 31, 2015

FY 15/16 
Preliminary

Budget

Revenue 
Received as of 

12/31/15

Budget Remaining
Member Contribution 8,003,132           6,283,661          
Metro E Reimbursement 10,000                749 
Reimb. Revene - Backbone 69,600                
Reimb. Revenue - SETNA Training 3,000 

Other:
Interest Income 6,000 3,637 
Board Ups 19,000                12,325                
CalCard Incentives 2,000 2,552 
Notary 100 10 
Admin-Fee Backbone 400 
CTC 10,000                9,828 
CTC Contracted Training 500 250 
Other 1,100 50 

Total Other 39,100                28,651                

Total 8,124,832           6,313,061          

*Numbers based on revenues received rather than revenues earned

Revenues - FY 15/16
As of December 31, 2015

Member 
Contribution 

99.84% 
Metro E Reimbursement 

0.012% 

Interest Income 
0.027% 

Board Ups 
0.059% 

CalCard Incentives 
0.040% 

CTC 
0.021% 

CTC Contracted Training 
0.004% Other 

0.001% 

FY 15-16 Revenue as of December 31, 2015 

19



Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Monthly Overtime Report
As of December 31, 2015

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 13-14 66.5 41 26 41.5 50.25 38 78 78.75 49 92.25 120.25 69.25
FY 14-15 57.5 53.5 73.25 124 126.25 123.75 64 145.5 114.25 96.25 114.75 190
FY 15-16 120.75 509.75 335.08 336.25 106 53.5

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 Comparative OT Report  
Admin Staff 

As of December 31, 2015 

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 13-14 155.75 214 112 117.25 113.25 287.5 152.25 187.5 112 60.5 79 110.5
FY 14-15 56.75 169.75 68.75 326.25 243 299.2 83 123.5 130.5 213.25 78.5 231
FY 15-16 238.25 366.5 318.75 241.5 225.76 92.5

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 Comparative OT Report  
Communications Staff 

As of December 31, 2015 

July August September October November December January February March April May June
FY 15-16 62.25 287.25 406 348.5

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY 15-16 OT Hours resulting from OES Deployment 
As of December 31, 2015 

Please note that OT due to OES deployment is included in Admin and Communications Staff OT numbers 

                                                      20



 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

December 8, 2015 
 

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS   
 Chief Hansen    Cosumnes Community Services District Fire Department 
 Chief Ron Phillips    City of Folsom Fire Department 
  
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
  
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT 
 Teresa Murray    Chief Executive Director 
  
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 Joyce Starosciak    Administrative Services Manager 
 Janice Parker    Administrative Analyst, SRFECC 
 Wendy Crosthwaite   Executive Assistant, SRFECC 
 Sara Roush    Accounting Assistant, SRFECC 
  

1. The meeting was called to order and roll call was taken at 10:30 a.m. 
 

2. There was no public comment. 
 
3. Presentation of Final Budget FY 2015/2016 

 
Sara Roush will be presenting this formalized version of the Final Budget FY 2015/2016, at the 
December 9th Board Meeting. The Final Budget FY 2015/2016 has already been adopted, but the 
document has been formatted for submittal to GFOA for award consideration. Chief Executive 
Murray said how proud she is of the budget document and the entire Accounting Team for all the 
work they have put into creating this budget. 
 
Chief Phillips noticed an increase in admin overtime that was attributed to deployments.  He 
suggested we add an additional column listing deployment hours separately.   

 
4. Review/Approval of Resolution #14-15, Transfer of Funds and Authorization for CAD System 

Payment 
 
Chief Phillips said the revised language of this resolution incorporates review of the CAD invoices 
by the Finance Committee prior to issuing payment as a means of “checks and balances”.  
 
The Committee supported and will recommend to the full Board, adoption of this resolution. 
 

5. Review/Approval of Resolution #15-15, Fixing the Employer’s Contribution Under the Public 
Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act 

 
 CalPERS recommended a revision to the language of our previously adopted resolution.  We 

submitted it to counsel for review and he agreed with the recommended changes.  Resolution 
#15-15, Fixing the Employer’s Contribution Under the Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital 
Care Act will be brought before the full Board for adoption at the December 9th Board Meeting. 
 

6.  Review/Approval of Revised Finance Minutes (September 8, 2015) 
 
 The revised version of the Finance Committee minutes from the September 8, 2015, Finance 

Committee Meeting were reviewed and the Committee will recommend acceptance by the full 
Board. 

                                                      21



 
 The Finance Committee adjourned at 10:42 a.m. until the next regular Meeting of the Finance 

Committee on January 12, 2016, at 10:30 a.m. at Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS 
Communications Center, 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827. 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 Janice Parker 
 Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________  
Ron Phillips, Chairperson    Tracey Hansen, Vice Chairperson  

                                                      22



            Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center 
            10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827-3006 
                      (916) 228-3070 – Fax (916) 228-3079 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. #5-16 
 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

 
(Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Verizon Wireless 
Concerning Potential Interference from Proposed New Cell Tower)  

 
              

 
 
WHEREAS, Sacramento-Valley Limited Partnership (a California limited partnership, d/b/a “Verizon 
Wireless” (“Verizon”)) has applied for a Limited Use Permit (“Permit”) from the City of Rancho 
Cordova to construct and operate a new Cell Tower at 10240 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, 
California; and 
 
WHEREAS, 10240 Systems Parkway is adjacent to the headquarters building of the Sacramento 
Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Verizon’s use of the Cell Tower has the potential to interfere with the Center’s essential 
public safety radio transmission and dispatch; and 
 
WHEREAS, Condition 18 of the Permit provides that if Center and Verizon enter into an agreement 
to minimize possible interference issues, that agreement shall constitute the conditions to prevent and 
mitigate potential interference by the Cell Tower to Center’s public communications systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, Verizon has agreed to enter into the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) that is 
attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by this Governing Board: 
 

1. The MOU that is attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution is approved.  
 

2. The Center will remove its objection to the issuance of the Permit when Verizon has executed 
the MOU and a memorandum of the MOU has been recorded with the Sacramento County 
Recorder’s Office. 

 
3. The Chief Executive Director is authorized and directed to execute the MOU on behalf of the 

Center, and to perform any actions, and execute any and all documents, which are 
necessary to effect the intent of this Resolution and the MOU. 

 

                                                      23



 
THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted by the Governing Board of the Sacramento 
Regional Public Safety Communications Center at a regular meeting held on the 26th of January, 2016, 
by the following roll call vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:  
 
Signed and Approved by me after its passage. 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Representative for Cosumnes Community  Representative for Sacramento Fire  
Services District Fire Department   Department 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Representative for Sacramento Metropolitan  Representative for City of Folsom Fire   
Fire District      Department 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Secretary to the Governing Board 
 

 

                                                      24



 
 

00041296.1   
 

1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made as of January __, 2016 between the 

Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center, a California Joint Powers Agency, 

with offices at 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, California 95827-3006 (“Center”) and 

Sacramento-Valley Limited Partnership, a California limited partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

(“Verizon”) (Center and Verizon are also collectively referred to as “Parties” and individually as 

“Party”).   

 

RECITALS 

 

1. Verizon is the owner of a cellular communications tower (“Cell Tower”) that it proposes 

to locate at 10240 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, California, 95827 (“Property”).  The 

Property and the placement of the Cell Tower are described in more detail in Exhibit A to 

this MOU, which is incorporated by this reference, and made a part of this MOU, as if 

fully set forth. 

 

2. Center is located at 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, California 95827 on the same 

parcel as the proposed Cell Tower site.  Center is the dispatch center for Sacramento 

County 9-1-1 medical emergency calls, and serves as the emergency operations center in 

case of a county-wide emergency.  It is also the backup dispatch center for the California 

Highway Patrol in this region. 

 

3. The City of Rancho Cordova (“City”) has zoning jurisdiction over the Property and the 

authority to impose conditions on the Limited Use Permit for the Cell Tower, subject to 

the preemption jurisdiction of the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”).   

 

4. Verizon has conducted cellular signal interference studies (“Studies”) and Center’s 

technical expert has responded thereto.   

 

5. Center has requested that Verizon relocate the proposed Cell Tower to another location at 

least one (1) to two (2) miles from Center’s existing tower. 

 

6. Verizon has refused to relocate the Cell Tower to a secondary site, but has agreed to 

negotiate this MOU with the Center to address the concerns of Center regarding potential 

interference. 

 

7. On October 14, 2015, City held a properly noticed public hearing on the proposed Cell 

Tower.   

 

8. At the hearing, City issued to Verizon a Limited Use Permit (“Permit”) and Conditions of 

Approval for the Cell Tower (“Conditions”). 

  

                                                      25



 
 

00041296.1   
 

2 

9. Condition of Approval No. 18 reads as follows: “Should Verizon and the Center enter 

into an agreement to minimize possible interference issues, the Agreement shall serve as 

compliance for the conditions pertaining to avoiding potential interference issues.” 

 

10. The Parties agree that the terms of this MOU adequately address Center’s concerns about 

potential interference and this MOU fulfills the compliance set forth in Condition of 

Approval 18 described above.  The parties therefore agree that the City should modify the 

Conditions as set forth in paragraph A.2 below. 

 

Now, therefore, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

A. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS 

 

1. In order to address Center’s concerns about interference, Verizon agrees to the 

following: 

 

a. Verizon hereby designates its Network Operations Center (“NOC”), 

telephone number (800) 264 - 6620 as its 24/7 contact with the authority 

to address reports/complaints of interference with the public safety 

communications frequencies of Center.  Upon contact with the NOC, 

Center shall provide the site name (Missile Way) and number (265255) to 

assist Verizon in responding promptly to any report of interference. 

 

b. If interference is predicted in a study described in these conditions, 

Verizon will take all reasonable, necessary steps to eliminate such 

interference prior to commencement of operation of the Cell Tower. 

 

c. No equipment (including transmitters) that operates in the cellular A Band 

(869-880, 890-891.5 MHz) or the ESMR band (862-869 MHz) may be 

placed on the Cell Tower. 

 

d. Omitted. 

 

e. If interference occurs after commencement of operation of the Cell Tower, 

Verizon shall promptly cooperate with Center to determine whether the 

facility is causing the interference in question, and if so, shall take all 

reasonable, necessary steps in order to eliminate such interference at the 

earliest practicable time.  If Verizon is determined to be the cause of the  

interference, Verizon shall be responsible for all labor and equipment 

costs for determining the source of the interference, and all costs 

associated with eliminating the interference (including but not limited to 

filtering, installing cavities, installing directional antennas, powering down 

systems, and engineering analysis).  If Verizon is not determined to be the 

cause of the interference, all such costs shall be borne by Center.   

 

f. Verizon’s failure to timely address or resolve confirmed interference with 

Center’s public safety communications radio signals will constitute a 

                                                      26



 
 

00041296.1   
 

3 

material violation of the conditions of this MOU and Center may take any 

lawful action to ensure that the interference ceases promptly.  

 

g. As used in this MOU, the term “collocation” shall mean the installation of 

any third party’s antennas or other transmission equipment on the Cell 

Tower, and also includes the subsequent modification of any such third-

party equipment at any time, but does not include the installation or 

modification of any equipment owned or operated by Verizon.  

 

h. Prior to initial construction by Verizon or any collocation by any third 

party, Verizon will complete an interference study, including, but not 

limited to, an intermodulation study conducted by a qualified radio 

engineering firm approved by Center, such approval not to be 

unreasonably withheld, to ensure that the Cell Tower does not cause 

interference with public safety communication radio signals in the 700 

MHz or 800 MHz band.  The study will evaluate the potential for 

interference using worst-case assumptions (i.e., all antennas transmitting 

simultaneously at full power on all frequencies), and will address the 

potential for interference with all public safety radios used by Center 

personnel, including: (1) personal radios of personnel on the ground at 

Center (both inside and outside Center headquarters); (2) mobile radios at 

Center; and (3) radios located inside the Center headquarters.  The study 

will be set forth in an interference report.  If the study predicts any 

interference with any of the Center’s radios, it must also specify mitigation 

measures required to prevent such interference, and Verizon shall be 

responsible for implementing those measures, or equivalent mitigation 

measures approved by the Center (such approval not to be unreasonable 

withheld) prior to the commencement of the construction or collocation.  

The report generated by Verizon is subject to review and approval by a 

technical expert of Center, who must be a licensed engineer with expertise 

in radio-frequency interference and Verizon shall not proceed with the 

construction or collocation until said report is approved by Center, 

provided, however, that such approval is not to be unreasonably withheld, 

and that Center shall approve or reject the report within two (2) weeks of 

receiving it or shall be deemed to have approved it.   

 

i. The covenants set forth in this MOU shall be binding on Verizon, and its 

successors and assigns, as covenants running with the land appurtenant to 

the real property, and Verizon shall cause a pro forma memorandum of 

this MOU to be recorded with the Recorder’s Office of Sacramento 

County within ten (10) days of the full execution of this MOU. 

  

                                                      27



 
 

00041296.1   
 

4 

j. After completion of initial construction by Verizon or any collocation by 

any third party, but prior to commencement of operation, Verizon will 

cooperate with Center to complete a test, at Center’s sole cost and 

expense, conducted by a qualified radio engineering firm to ensure that the 

Cell Tower does not cause harmful interference to Center’s public safety 

radio receivers operating within the frequencies lawfully used by Center.  

Testing shall include, at a minimum, effective sensitivity testing of all 

applicable receivers where the baseline sensitivity (cell site off) is 

compared to the effective sensitivity with all Cell Tower radios keyed 

simultaneously at full operating power.  Receiver desense measured 

greater than 1.5 dB shall be further investigated and mitigated through 

filtering, antenna relocation or other means.  Interference mitigation shall 

be performed at Verizon’s expense.  The test shall include measurements 

of interference to: a) portable radios of personnel on the ground at Center 

(both inside and outside Center’s headquarters); b) mobile radios at 

Center; and c) fixed control station radios located inside the Center’s 

headquarters.  The results of the test will be set forth in an interference 

report that clearly states the result of the test, and if interference is found, 

the mitigation measures to be taken to cure such interference.  If the test 

establishes the existence of interference caused by the Verizon facility, 

Verizon shall be responsible for eliminating such interference prior to 

commencement of operation of the facility or collocation equipment.  

 

k. Collocation and Modification 

 

i. Collocation: 

 

Prior to any collocation on the Cell Tower, Verizon shall: a) 

provide notice of the proposed collocation to Center; and b) 

perform an interference study and testing, which shall include 

testing of the aggregate signals and the cumulative effect of all 

carriers located on the cell tower, in the same manner and subject 

to the same process as set forth in paragraphs h. and j., above.  

Upon successful completion of the processes required by this 

paragraph, Verizon shall provide copies of all studies and reports 

generated for any collocation on the Cell Tower to Center for 

Center’s records.  Should a proposed collocation cause incurable 

interference to Center’s public safety radio receivers, Verizon shall 

not implement such collocation. 

 

ii. Verizon Modifications: 

 

Prior to any modification of the Cell Tower by Verizon which will 

result in any increase in radio power or change in frequency, 

Verizon shall: a) provide notice of the modification to Center; and 

b) perform an interference study and shall fully mitigate any 

predicted interference prior to making the modification in question.  

                                                      28



 
 

00041296.1   
 

5 

Except to the extent set forth below, such study shall not be subject 

to prior review and approval by the Center.  If the modification 

causes a change in, or addition to frequencies or ERP in the 700 or 

800 MHz bands: a) the study generated by Verizon in accordance 

with this paragraph shall be subject to review and approval by a 

technical expert of Center, who must be a licensed engineer (not 

necessarily in California) with expertise in radio-frequency 

interference; b) Center must provide its comments on the study to 

Verizon within two (2) weeks of receipt of the study; c) the parties 

shall work together in good faith to address Center’s concerns; and 

d) Verizon shall not implement any such modification until the 

Center’s concerns are resolved to the satisfaction of Center.  This 

subsection k.ii does not apply to like kind replacement of 

equipment or antennas with no increase in power levels or changes 

in frequency.  Should a proposed modification cause incurable 

interference to Center’s public safety radio receivers, Verizon shall 

not implement such modification.   

 

iii. RF Personnel Exposure Study: 

 

Prior to any collocation or modification, except like kind 

replacement of equipment/transmitter(s) with no increase in power 

levels or changes in frequency or antenna, Verizon shall also 

perform an RF personnel exposure study to verify radio frequency 

power densities at ground level and at working levels on rooftops, 

etc. do not exceed the guidelines found in FCC Rule Parts 1.1307-

1.1310.  Any areas exceeding applicable limits (occupational or 

public) must be properly marked per FCC recommendations and 

access must be restricted. 

 

2. The parties hereby jointly request that the City modify the Permit by deleting 

Conditions 10-16, 18-22, and 27-28, and revising Conditions 3, 7, and 22 to read 

as follows: 

 

a. Condition 3: Any future alteration to the buildings, change in use, 

intensification of the site, or modification to the parking and landscaped 

area must be reviewed by the City to ensure compliance with all local, 

state, and federal regulations. Minor modifications that are found to be in 

substantial conformance with the approved plans such as colors, plant 

materials, minor lot line adjustments, or eligible facilities requests that do 

not substantially change the physical dimensions of the facility pursuant to 

47 U.S.C. § 1455(a), may be approved administratively.  Major 

modifications shall be approved by the applicable decision making body. 

 

b. Condition 7: If future collocation is consistent with these conditions of 

approval, then those collocation items may be permitted on the same pole 

                                                      29



 
 

00041296.1   
 

6 

so long as additions of equipment do not hinder the camouflage of the 

pole.  No additional height will be allowed without proper review. 

 

c. Condition 22: A building permit will be required prior to construction. All 

construction activities shall be reviewed by the building department. 

 

3. By this MOU, the Parties wish to acknowledge their respective rights and 

obligations and make them enforceable as rights and obligations pursuant to this 

MOU.  

 

4. This MOU shall remain in effect until terminated in writing, by the mutual 

agreement of all Parties, with the approval of Center’s governing Board. 

 

B. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

1. Enforcement 

 

Any Party may bring an action to enforce this MOU as allowed by California law.   

 

2. Entire Agreement 

 

The Parties declare and represent that there has been no other promise, 

inducement or agreement, and that this MOU constitutes the entire agreement 

between the Parties with respect to the matters covered in the MOU and it 

supersedes all prior agreements, whether written or oral, between the Parties on 

those matters, and that the terms of this MOU are contractual and not a mere 

recital.  

 

The Parties agree that: 

 

a. No other agreement, statement or promise made by a Party with respect to 

the subject matter of this MOU, which is not contained herein, shall be 

binding or valid. 

 

b. The Parties agree not to initiate, file or in any way support any action 

challenging the validity of the provisions of this MOU.  In the event of, 

and during the pendency of, any legal or equitable challenge to the 

provisions of this MOU, the terms of this MOU will stay in full force and 

effect. 

 

3. Warranty of Legal Capacity and Authority 

 

a. Each Party represents that it has the right, power, legal capacity and 

authority to enter into and perform the obligations under this MOU and to 

bind its heirs, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns.   

 

                                                      30



 
 

00041296.1   
 

7 

b. Each person who signs this MOU warrants and guarantees that he/she is 

legally authorized and empowered to execute this MOU on behalf of the 

designated Party. 

 

4. Attorney’s Fees 

 

In the event of any proceeding arising out of or related to a breach of this MOU 

by any Party hereto, the prevailing Party or Parties shall be entitled to recover 

from the losing Party or Parties all of the costs and expenses incurred in 

connection with such proceeding, including court costs and attorney’s fees and 

expert’s fees, whether or not such proceeding is prosecuted to judgment.   

 

5. Modification and Amendment 

 

All modifications and amendments to this MOU must be in writing, signed by all 

the Parties to this MOU, and approved by the governing Board of Center. 

 

6. Construction of MOU and Understanding   

 

a. The Parties agree that each has reviewed and revised this MOU, and each 

Party has had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel regarding the 

terms of this MOU, and that any rule of construction to the effect that 

ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in 

an interpretation of this MOU and/or any amendment thereto.   

 

b. By executing this MOU, each Party represents that it has had the 

opportunity to seek legal advice from an attorney of its own choosing and 

to discuss the legal effect of this MOU with its own counsel.   

 

c. Each Party represents that the terms of this MOU have been completely 

read and explained to it by its attorneys, and that it fully understands and 

voluntarily accepts those terms and their legal effect,. 

 

7. Additional Documents 

 

Each Party will execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, 

acknowledged and delivered, any additional instruments and/or documents that 

may be necessary in order to consummate this MOU and/or any judgment which 

incorporates this MOU. 

 

8. Governing Law and Venue   

This MOU shall be construed and enforced in accordance with and governed by 

the laws of the State of California.  Venue shall be in Sacramento County, 

California.   

 

                                                      31



00041296.1 

8 

9. Counterparts

This MOU may be executed in separate counterparts, such that signatures appear 

on separate signature pages.  An authentic facsimile copy or an authentic 

electronic copy (including canned copies and PDF format) of an executed 

signature page shall constitute an original.  A copy or original of this document 

with all signature pages appended together shall be deemed a fully executed 

MOU. 

10. Severability

If any part of this MOU is ruled to be unenforceable or invalid, such material shall 

be read out of this MOU and shall not affect the validity of any other part of this 

MOU or give rise to any cause of action of the Center or Verizon against the 

other.  The remainder of this MOU shall remain valid and enforced to the fullest 

extent permitted by law, unless to do so would frustrate the intent of the parties. 

11. Exhibits

Any Exhibit specified in this MOU, and any Appendix to any Exhibit to this 

MOU, is attached to this MOU and by this reference made a part of it as if fully 

set forth. 

12. Binding Effect

This MOU and all rights and obligations hereunder shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the Center and Verizon and their respective heirs, 

successors, assigns, and personal representatives.  Nothing in this MOU, express 

or implied, is intended to confer upon any other person other than the parties 

hereto, or their respective successors and assigns, any rights or benefits under or 

by reason of this MOU.   

13. Assignment of Rights and Obligations of MOU

a. Any assignment of rights or obligations established by this MOU shall

comply with the terms of this MOU.

b. Neither this MOU, nor any obligation or right under this MOU, is

assignable by any Party to the MOU without the written prior consent of

the other Party to the MOU.  Any assignment made without such prior

written consent is void and the Party making such an assignment remains

bound by all of its obligations under this MOU, unless the Party to this

MOU agrees in writing to such assignment.

c. Verizon shall provide a copy of this MOU to any assignee.

32



 
 

00041296.1   
 

9 

d. The rights and obligations under this MOU are not personal to Verizon 

and are not intended to be severable from the Cell Tower. 

 

e. This MOU and all rights and obligations hereunder shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of the Center and Verizon and their respective 

heirs, successor assignees and personal representatives. 

 

14. Notices   

 

Any notice to any Party shall be to the contact designated below, in writing, and 

delivered by overnight delivery by a  courier that provides  tracking and delivery 

confirmation: 

 

  To Center: Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center 

    10230 Systems Parkway 

Sacramento, CA 95827-3006 

    Tel: (916) 228-3064 

    Attention: Teresa Murray, Chief Executive Director 

    Email: tmurray@srfecc.ca.gov  

 

 Copy to: Kingsley Bogard LLP 

    50 Iron Point Circle, Suite 110 

    Folsom, CA 95630 

    Tel: (916) 932-2500 

    Attention: Robert E. Kingsley 

    Email: rkingsley@kblegal.us 

 

  To Verizon: Sacramento-Valley Limited Partnership 

    d/b/a Verizon Wireless 

    180 Washington Valley Road 

    Bedminster, New Jersey 07921 

    Attention:  Network Real Estate 

Site name: Missile Way 

Email: Molly.Kales2@VerizonWireless.com 

 

  Copy to: Mackenzie & Albritton, LLP 

    220 Sansome Street, 14th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94104 

Tel: (415) 288-4000 

Attention: James Heard, Esq. 

jheard@mallp.com 

 

15. Time is of the Essence  

 

Time is of the essence as to the terms of this MOU and the performance by each 

Party of their respective obligations hereunder. 

 

                                                      33



 
 

00041296.1   
 

10 

16. Compromise Serves a Public Benefit 

 

The parties acknowledge and agree that this MOU is the product of a negotiated 

compromise of the respective claims and rights asserted by the parties thereto, and 

does not constitute a gift of public funds under Article XVI section 6 of the 

California Constitution.  Center (by and through its governing Board) is not acting 

in excess of its authority in entering into this MOU under the California 

Constitution or any other enabling legislation, including, but not limited to, 

Government Code section 53060.  This MOU is supported by valuable 

consideration involving a public purpose in conferring a public benefit upon the 

Center and the taxpayers who reside within the boundaries of Center’s 

jurisdiction.  This public purpose and benefit includes avoiding any challenge to 

the validity or enforceability to the Conditions, in their entirety or in part. 

 

17. Waiver 

 

The waiver by a Party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this 

MOU shall not be deemed a waiver of such term, covenant or condition of this 

MOU in case of future breach. 

 

18. Recitals 

 

The Recitals set forth above are a part of this Agreement and incorporated herein 

as if fully set forth. 

 

19. Board Approval 

 

This MOU and any Amendment thereto are subject to approval by the governing 

Board of Center.  Until such approval, the MOU shall not be binding on either 

Party. 

 

 20. FCC Rules  

 

Verizon has entered into this MOU voluntarily and accepts it as a legally binding 

obligation, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the FCC rules and 

regulations. 

 

  

                                                      34



00041296.1 

11 

21. Confidentiality

[TO BE NEGOTIATED] 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY 

Dated:  ____________________ COMMUNICATIONS CENTER, a California Joint 

Powers Agency 

By:  ______________________________________ 

 Teresa Murray 

Its: Chief Executive Director 

SACRAMENTO-VALLEY LIMITED 

PARTNERSHIP D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS, a 

California limited partnership 

Dated:  ____________________ By:  AirTouch Cellular, Its General Partner 

By: __________________________ 

Name:  __________________________ 

Title:  __________________________ 

35



 
 

00041296.1   
 

12 

 

EXHIBIT A 

TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

 

 

 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND PLACEMENT OF CELL TOWER 
 

 

                                                      36



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1 - 16 
 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

 
(Resolution Regarding Services and Related Agreements with the City of Isleton) 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Isleton (“Contracting Agency”) has requested that the Sacramento Regional Public 
Safety Communications Center (“Center”) provide public safety emergency fire and ambulance 
communications/dispatch services (“Services”). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Governing Board: 
 
1. Approves the Services Agreement that is attached as Exhibit A; 
 
2. Agrees to sponsor Contracting Agency as a Secondary Participant in the Sacramento Regional Radio 

Communications System; 
 
3. Authorizes the Chief Executive Director to execute the Services Agreement and to take any action, and 

execute any and all documents, which are necessary to effect the intent of this Resolution. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted by the Governing Board of the Sacramento Regional 
Public Safety Communications Center at its Regular Meeting held on January 26, 2016, by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
Signed and approved by me after its passage. 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chairperson of the Governing Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 

 

                                                      37



                                                      38



                                                      39



                                                      40



41



42



43



                                                      44



                                                      45



                                                      46



                                                      47



                                                      48



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2 -16 

 
BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 
 

(Resolution Regarding Services and Related Agreements 
with the River Delta Fire Protection District) 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the River Delta Fire Protection District (“Contracting Agency”) has requested that the Sacramento 
Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center”) provide public safety emergency fire and ambulance 
communications/dispatch services (“Services”). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Governing Board: 
 
1. Approves the Services Agreement that is attached as Exhibit A; 
 
2. Agrees to sponsor Contracting Agency as a Secondary Participant in the Sacramento Regional Radio 

Communications System; 
 
3. Authorizes the Chief Executive Director to execute the Services Agreement and to take any action, and 

execute any and all documents, which are necessary to effect the intent of this Resolution. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted by the Governing Board of the Sacramento Regional 
Public Safety Communications Center at its Regular Meeting held on January 26, 2016, by the following roll 
call vote: 
 
 AYES: 
 

NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
Signed and approved by me after its passage. 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chairperson of the Governing Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 

 
 

                                                      49



                                                      50



                                                      51



                                                      52



                                                      53



                                                      54



                                                      55



                                                      56



                                                      57



58



59



60



RESOLUTION NO. 3-16 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

(Resolution regarding Secondary Participant Status for 
the Veterans Administration Medical Center) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA Hospital”), located at 1035 Hospital Way, 
Mather, California, has requested that the Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center 
(“Center”) sponsor it as a Secondary Participant on the Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System 
(“SRRCS”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by this Governing Board that: 

1. The Center is willing to sponsor the VA Hospital as a Secondary Participant with access to SRRCS
radio frequencies.

2. The Chief Executive Director is authorized to execute an Agreement for Use of Radio Frequencies on
behalf of the Center, and to perform any action, and execute any and all documents which are necessary
to effect the intent of this Resolution.

THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted by the Governing Board of the Sacramento Regional 
Public Safety Communications Center at its Regular Meeting held on January 26, 2016, by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

Signed and Approved by me after its passage. 
___________________________________ 
Chairperson of the Governing Board 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 

61



RESOLUTION NO. 4-16 

BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

(Resolution Regarding Name Change and Reaffirmation of Logo/Trademark) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center (“SRFECC”) changed its name to 
the Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“SRPSCC”) effective July 14, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the Logo/Trademark of SRFECC has continued in use from July 10, 2014 to the present and this 
continued use, while highly desirable from a “branding” perspective, has the potential to create confusion. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by this Governing Board: 

1. The SRPSCC shall continue under its legal name that was filed with the California Secretary of State’s
Office on August 18, 2014; and

2. The SRPSCC shall adopt a fictitious name as the “Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications
Center.”

3. The Chief Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to file a fictitious name filing in the
County of Sacramento in the form of Exhibit A attached to this Resolution, and comply with any
publication requirements.

4. The Logo/Trademark in the form of Exhibit B attached to this Resolution is reaffirmed as the official
Logo/Trademark of SRPSCC.

THIS RESOLUTION was duly passed and adopted by the Governing Board of the Sacramento Regional 
Public Safety Communications Center, at its Regular Meeting held on January 26, 2016, by the following roll 
call vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

Signed and Approved by me after its passage. 
___________________________________ 
Chairperson of the Governing Board 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board 

62



63



64



65



 

 

SACRAMENTO 
REGIONAL PUBLIC 
SAFETY 
COMMUNICATIONS 
CENTER 
DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND SURVEY 

2016 

66



SACRAMENTO REGIONAL  
PUBLIC SAFETY  

COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 

Department Review and Survey 

This report contains a survey for the following SRPSCC Divisions: 

• Accounting
• Conference and Training Center
• Dispatch Operations
• Human Resources
• Information Technology (IT)
• Organization Overall

67



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Accounting Survey: 

a) How positive is your interaction with SRFECC staff?
1 2 3 4 5 

b) How satisfied are you with the promptness of the payment of
your invoice?

1 2 3 4 5 

c) Are the invoices you receive from SRFECC clear and easy 
to understand?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) Do you prefer paperless billing?
a. No
b. Yes

e) What can our team do better to serve you?

________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

                                                      68



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Conference and Training Center: 

a) Were team member(s) friendly and knowledgeable, 
accommodating meeting needs and making reservations in a 
timely manner? 

1 2 3 4 5 
 

b) Was the Conference & Training Center location convenient? 
1 2 3 4 5 

c) If Command Catering services were utilized, were team 
members professional and friendly, dietary restrictions 
accommodated (vegan, vegetarian, gluten free), and ample 
food provided for your event? 

1 2 3 4 5 
 

d) Would you recommend the Conference & Training Center to 
your colleagues/friends? 

1 2 3 4 5 
 

e) Would you recommend Command Catering services for an 
event in your future? 

1 2 3 4 5 
 

f) What can our team do better to serve you? 
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________
________________________________________________ 

 

                                                      69



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Dispatch Operations: 

- Citizens calling 9-1-1: 

a) Was the Fire Dispatcher polite and professional throughout
the call?

1 2 3 4 5 

b) Were you able to understand the instructions given?
1 2 3 4 5 

c) Was the Fire Dispatcher able to meet your needs when you
called 9-1-1?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) Did the Fire Dispatcher express compassion and concern?
1 2 3 4 5 

e) Did the Fire Dispatcher handle your call in a prompt
manner?

1 2 3 4 5 

f) What can we do better to serve you?

________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

70



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Dispatch Operations: 

- Field Units: 
a) What is the level of professionalism of the dispatchers on the

radio?
1 2 3 4 5 

b) Have you ever called into Fire Dispatch?
a. No – ⃝
b. Yes – Was the dispatcher polite and professional

throughout the call?
1 2 3 4 5 

c) Was the Fire Dispatcher able to meet your needs when you
called?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) Did the Fire Dispatcher handle your call in a prompt
manner?

1 2 3 4 5 

e) Have you ever participated in a sit-along in dispatch for more
than an hour?

a. No – ⃝
b. Yes – Was the sit-along time valuable to you?

1 2 3 4 5 

f) What can we do better to serve you?

________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

                                                      71



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Human Resources: 

a) Do you feel the communication from the Human Resource
Department when applying for employment was helpful and
prompt?

1 2 3 4 5 

b) Is the hiring process clearly explained during each phase?
1 2 3 4 5 

c) Were you treated with respect and kindness by our pre-
employment physical team at Mercy Occupational Medical
Facility?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) Were you treated with respect and kindness by our
psychologists and their team during your pre-employment
psychological evaluation?

1 2 3 4 5 

e) What can we do better to serve you?
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

72



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Information Technology (IT): 

a) Are the members of the IT team professional and responsive
to your needs?

1 2 3 4 5 

b) Do you feel the members of the IT team support you?
1 2 3 4 5 

c) Was the response to, or completion of, the work requested
timely?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) What can we do better to serve you?
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

73



Please rate all questions on a 1-5 scale, with 5 being outstanding and 1 needing improvement. 

Organization Overall: 

a) Have you recently visited the Communications Center? If
yes, were you treated with respect and kindness?

1 2 3 4 5 

b) Depending on the nature of your visit, was your matter
handled in a professional manner?

1 2 3 4 5 

c) What is your overall impression of Sacramento Regional
Public Safety Communications Center?

1 2 3 4 5 

d) What can we do better to serve you?
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________
________________________________________________

74



o Customer Service Compliance Average* (Baseline Requirement of 95%)
• Customer Service Compliance Average for November, 2015: 97.17%
• Customer Service Compliance Average for December, 2015: 99.69%
• Overall – Customer Service Compliance Average for 2015: 98.82%

o Total Compliance Average* (Baseline Requirement of 90%)
• Total Compliance Average for November, 2015: 97.36%
• Total Compliance Average for December, 2015: 92.54%
• Overall – Total Compliance Average for 2015: 95.60%

*Effective Emergency Medical Dispatch (EMD) practices are based on the consistent use of
medically approved dispatch protocols. EMD or the Medical Priority Dispatching System (MPDS) 
is in part based on published standards of the International Academy of Emergency Dispatch 
(IAED) in consultation with the National Association of EMS Physicians (NAEMSP), the American 
Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM), the American College of Emergency Physicians (ACEP), 
the U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT), the National Institutes of Health (NIH), the 
American Medical Association (AMA), and more than 30 years of research, development, and 
field testing throughout the world. Overall, the dispatch protocols are established by the IAED 
Board of Fellows, which is responsible for setting the accreditation process of the International 
Academy. Per IAED standards, the Quality Improvement standards report requires a consistent, 
cumulative MPDS incident case review of at or above the stated baseline percentages. 

75



SRFECC – 125 Life Saves in 2015 
 
Since January 1st, 2015 our Dispatch Team has accomplished 125 Life Saves. 
 

 
 

15 Life Saves – November, 2015 
 

1. On November 1st, Call Taker Theresa Miller, B Days Squad, while utilizing effective 
EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving CPR 
instructions.  
 

2. On November 4th, Call Taker Angela Stefenoni, A Days Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
maternity instructions for a baby boy born in a non-hospital environment. 

 
3. On November 4th, Dispatcher Amy Wolfe, A Days Squad, while utilizing effective 

EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving Heimlich 
and CPR instructions. 

 
4. On November 6th, Call Taker Janet Tracy, B Nights Squad, while utilizing effective 

EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving CPR 
instructions. 

 
5. On November 7th, Call Taker Brady Jones, A Days Squad, while utilizing effective 

EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving CPR 
instructions. 

 

                                                      76



6. On November 12th, Dispatcher Tina Dungan, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
maternity instructions for a baby girl born in a non-hospital environment.  

 
 

7. On November 15th, Supervisor Tara Poirier, B Nights Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions 
 

8. On November 15th, Call Taker Theresa Miller, B Days Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
9. On November 16th, Dispatcher Dana Guerrero, A Days Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
maternity instructions for a baby boy born in a non-hospital environment. 

 
10. On November 22nd, Call Taker Janet Tracy, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
11. On November 22nd, Dispatcher Ava Fender, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
12. On November 23rd, Dispatcher Marlo Swett, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
13. On November 24th, Supervisor Chuck Moody, B Days Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
14. On November 26th, Call Taker Jamie Brown, B Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions.  

 
15. On November 29th, Supervisor Barbara Vatalaro, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                      77



9 Life Saves – December, 2015 
 

1. On December 1st, Dispatcher Jillian Short, B Nights Squad, while utilizing effective 
EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving CPR 
instructions. 
 

2. On December 5th, Dispatcher Marlo Swett, A Nights Squad, while utilizing effective 
EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving CPR 
instructions. 

 
3. On December 10th, Call Taker Laura Macias, A Days Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 
 

4. On December 10th, Dispatcher Dennis McGrath, A Days Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
maternity instructions for a baby born in a non-hospital environment. 
 

5. On December 14th, Call Taker Theresa Miller, B Days Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
6. On December 18th, Dispatcher Lynn Walker, A Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 
 

7. On December 20th, Dispatcher Katherine Shelton, B Nights Squad, while utilizing 
effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
8. On December 27th, Call Taker Jennifer Rooke, B Days Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 

 
9. On December 31st, Dispatcher Katherine Shelton, B Nights Squad, while utilizing 

effective EMD instructions assisted the 9-1-1 reporting party in providing life-saving 
CPR instructions. 
 

 

                                                      78



Total number of CAD incidents for December, 2015: 15,944 

 
Average number of CAD incidents per day for December, 2015: 514 

 

                                                      79



The following data is the telephony performance measures for the Sacramento 
Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center (SRFECC) during the month of 
December, 2015 for all incoming and outgoing calls to and from the Center on 9-
1-1 lines, Seven-Digit Emergency (7DE) lines, Allied Agencies (i.e. Sacramento 
Police Dept.), Alarm Company lines, as well as Seven-Digit Administrative lines. 
 
Summary of Information 
 
During the month of December, 2015 dispatch staff processed 24,848 incoming 
calls and 7,252 outgoing calls for a total call volume of 32,100.  
 
Detailed Breakdown of Information 
 

• Incoming 9-1-1 lines: There were 12,224 incoming 9-1-1 calls.  
 

• “Seven-Digit” Emergency lines (7DE): There were 4,221 incoming 
seven-digit emergency calls. 
 

• Allied Agency/Alarm Co: There were 3,109 incoming Allied Agency and 
Alarm Company calls. 

 

• Non-Emergency/Administrative (7DA) lines: There were 5,294 
incoming 7DA calls. 

 

                                                      80



 
The following chart represents incoming call distribution according to class of 
service (i.e. Cell-Phase 2, Residential, etc.) for the 12,224 incoming 9-1-1 calls. 

INCOMING 9-1-1 CALL DISTRIBUTION - December, 2015

Payphone
58
0%

Cell-Phase 2
7,446
62%

Cell-Phase 1
395
3%

VOLP
1,149

9%

Other (i.e. PBX)
1,321
11%

Residential
1,855
15%

Cell-Phase 2 Residential Other (i.e. PBX)
VOLP Cell-Phase 1 Payphone

 
 
Answering Standard: NFPA 1221 – 2013 Edition 
 
According to NFPA 1221–2013 ed., Chp. 7, Sec. 7.4–Operating Procedures: 
 

Rule 7.4.1: “Ninety-five percent of alarms received on emergency lines 
shall be answered within 15 seconds, and 99 percent of alarms shall be 
answered within 40 seconds.” 

 
Utilizing the measure recommended by NFPA 1221-2013 ed. that all calls 
received on emergency lines shall be answered within 15 seconds 95% of the 
time and 99% percent of emergency lines shall be answered within 40 seconds –  
In December, the dispatch team answered all calls on emergency lines within 15 
seconds 97.40% of the time and answered within 40 seconds 99.79%. Thus, the 
dispatch team exceeded both NFPA answering standards in December. 

                                                      81



Total 136 114 22

Profile 4 3 1
Software 11 13 -2

New CAD Issue 3 3 0
Operations 10 10 0

Hardware 10 9 1
Intrado Phone System 46 39 7

Facility 8 6 2
GIS 13 16 -3

Contracts 1 0 1
Email 11 8 3

CAD 8 1 7
Communications 11 6 5

Category Opened SRs Closed SRs Total (opened - closed)

Opened/Closed Service Records Per Category
Date range 11/01/2015 - 11/30/2015
Generated on 01/14/2016 13:55

1, 1% 

6, 5% 

0, 0% 

8, 7% 
6, 5% 

16, 14% 

9, 8% 
39, 34% 

3, 3% 
10, 9% 

3, 3% 13, 11% 

CAD

Communications

Contracts

Email

Facility

GIS

Hardware

Intrado Phone System

New CAD Issue

Operations

Profile

Software

Service  Records Closed in November 

                                                      82



Total 130 133 -3

Software 15 10 5

Operations 3 3 0
Profile 1 6 -5

Hardware 18 18 0
Intrado Phone System 38 35 3

Facility 7 9 -2
GIS 18 16 2

Contracts 1 1 0
Email 14 15 -1

CAD 11 15 -4
Communications 4 5 -1

Category Opened SRs Closed SRs Total (opened - closed)

Opened/Closed Service Records Per Category
Date range 12/01/2015 - 12/31/2015
Generated on 01/14/2016 13:03

15, 11% 5, 4% 
1, 1% 

15, 11% 

9, 7% 

16, 12% 

18, 14% 

35, 26% 

3, 2% 
6, 4% 

10, 8% 

Service Records Closed in December 

CAD

Communications

Contracts

Email

Facility

GIS

Hardware

Intrado Phone System

Operations

Profile

Software

                                                      83



                                                      84



85


	1-Board Agenda 1-16
	A   G   E   N   D   A
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF SRPSCC

	2-Board Meeting 15-12
	3-Board Meeting Workshop 1-16
	4-November 2015
	Receipts Graph
	BTA
	OT Report

	5-December 2015
	BTA
	Receipts Graph
	OT Report

	6-Finance Meeting 15-12 doc
	7-Resolution #5-16, MOU with Verizon Wireless
	8-Cell Tower MOU 2016
	9-Resolution #1-16, City of Isleton - Contracting Agency
	10-Services Agreement^Isleton^11.25.15^Final-Signed (00039417xCD590)
	11-Dispatch Services^Isleton^Resolution re Approval-Ratification of Agreement
	12-Resolution #2-16, River Delta Fire Protection Distrcit - Contracting Agency
	13-Services Agreement and Resolution^River Delta^Signed
	14-Resolution #3-16, Sponsor Veteran's Administration as Secondary User
	15-Resolution #4-16, Name Change and Reaffirmation of Trademark
	16-Fictitious Business Name
	17-SRPSCC Division Survey - 2016
	18- January 2016 Board Meeting - EMD Info for November and December 2015
	19-DEC 2015 CAD Incidents
	20-Telephony Info - DEC 2015
	21-November Closed Service Records
	RequestPerPeriod

	22- December Closed Service Records
	RequestPerPeriod

	23-Comms Center Appointees_1.19.16
	24-el dorado feasibility



